## EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL COMMITTEE MINUTES

Committee:	Area Planning Subcommittee West Date: 17 June 2009	
Place:	Combined Committee Rooms 1 & <b>Time:</b> 7.30 - 9.47 pm 2 - Civic Offices	
Members Present:	J Wyatt (Chairman), Mrs P Brooks (Vice-Chairman), R Bassett, Mrs A Cooper, Mrs R Gadsby, Mrs J Lea, Mrs M Sartin, Mrs P Smith, Ms S Stavrou and A Watts	
Other Councillors:	J Knapman	
Apologies:	J Collier, W Pryor and Mrs E Webster	
Officers Present:	J Shingler (Senior Planning Officer), A Hendry (Democratic Services Officer), D Clifton (Principal Housing Officer [IT]) and R Perrin (Democratic Services Assistant)	

#### 1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION

The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the webcasting of its meetings. The Sub-Committee noted the Council's Protocol for Webcasting of Council and Other Meetings.

### 2. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION

The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the procedures and arrangements agreed by the Council, to enable persons to address the Sub-Committee in relation to the determination of applications for planning permission.

#### 3. MINUTES

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the minutes of the meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 20 May 2009 be taken as read and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

#### 4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

(a) Pursuant to the Council's Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs P Smith declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue of being a member of Epping Upland Parish Council and had family and friends in close proximity. The Councillor had determined that her interest was prejudicial and she would leave the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon:

• EPF/0606/09 Three Gates, Epping Road, Epping Upland

(b) Pursuant to the Council's Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs A Cooper declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of being a member of Nazeing Parish Council. The Councillor had determined that her interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon:

• EPF/0308/09 8 Buttondene Crescent, Old Nazeing Road, Broxbourne

(c) Pursuant to the Council's Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs M Sartin declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of attending the pharmacy. The Councillor had determined that her interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon:

• EPF/2233/08 100 High Street, Roydon, Harlow

(d) Pursuant to the Council's Code of Member Conduct, Councillors Ms S Stavrou and Mrs P Brookes declared a personal interest in the following items of the agenda, by virtue of being members of Waltham Abbey Town Council. The Councillors had determined that their interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the applications and voting thereon:

- EPF/0383/09 The Limes/White Lodge, Sewardstone Road, Waltham Abbey
- EPF/0622/09 The Stables, Lippitts Hill, Waltham Abbey

(e) Pursuant to the Council's Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs J Lea declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue of being a member of staff of Tesco's. The Councillor had determined that her interest was prejudicial and she would leave the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon:

• EPF/0560/09 Tesco Stores Limited, Sewardstone Road, Waltham Abbey

(f) Pursuant to the Council's Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs P Brookes declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of being a member of Waltham Abbey Town Council. The Councillor had determined that her interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon:

• EPF/0560/09 Tesco Stores Limited, Sewardstone Road, Waltham Abbey

(g) Pursuant to the Council's Code of Member Conduct, Councillors Mrs R Gadsby and Mrs P Brookes declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of being members of Waltham Abbey Town Council. The Councillors had determined that their interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the applications and voting thereon:

• EPF/0765/09 23A Highbridge Street, Waltham Abbey

### 5. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

It was reported that there was no urgent business for consideration at the meeting.

#### 6. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

The Sub-Committee considered a schedule of applications for planning permission.

#### **RESOLVED:**

That, Planning applications numbered 1 - 8 be determined as set out in the annex to these minutes.

#### 7. EPF/1305/08 1 CARTERSFIELD ROAD, WALTHAM ABBEY, ESSEX, EN9 -DEMOLITION OF EXISTING BUILDINGS AND ERECTION OF NEW 'LIDL' FOODSTORE AND CONSTRUCTION OF FIVE START-UP INDUSTRIAL UNITS (REVISED APPLICATION)

The Principal Planning Officer presented a report regarding EPF/1305/08 – 1 Cartersfield Road, Waltham Abbey (revised application). The Sub-Committee had been asked to consider a variation to condition No. 19 of the application:

The industrial units hereby approved shall be completed prior to the occupation of the store.

Reason: - The provision of the industrial units was a significant factor in the reuse of the designated employment land for retail purposes.

The Sub-Committee were informed that planning permission for the demolition of existing buildings and erection of a new 'Lidi' food store and construction of five startup industrial units had been considered by Area Planning Subcommittee West on 29 October 2008 and referred to District Development Committee on 2 December 2008 (minute 36(19)) at which it was agreed to grant consent subject to conditions and a S106 agreement.

Since the S106 agreement had not yet been completed and no decision had been given for the scheme, the applicant had raised issues with the timescale, given that applicant felt confident the approved store could be erected and opened within an approximate 18-week period and the control of the industrial units remained with the freehold owner.

In view of the fact that the S106 agreement had not yet been completed the wording of the condition could be altered without a further planning application.

The Sub-Committee had been asked to consider the variation of condition No. 19, to read:

The industrial units hereby approved shall be completed within 12 months from the date of occupation of the store.

#### **RESOLVED:**

That, the variation to condition No. 19 be granted, to read:

The industrial units hereby approved shall be completed within 12 months from the date of occupation of the store.

Reason: - The provision of the industrial units was a significant factor in the reuse of the designated employment land for retail purposes.

## 8. DELEGATED DECISIONS

The Sub-Committee noted that details of planning applications determined by the Head of Planning Economic Development under delegated authority since the last meeting had been circulated to all members and were available for inspection at the Civic Offices.

CHAIRMAN

APPLICATION No:	EPF/0606/09
SITE ADDRESS:	Three Gates Epping Road Epping Upland Epping Essex CM16 6PR
PARISH:	Epping Upland
WARD:	Broadley Common, Epping Upland and Nazeing
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:	Ground floor single storey rear extension with terrace above, loft conversion with dormers to front and rear, enlargement of existing vehicle crossover and additional vehicle crossover. (Revised application)
DECISION:	Grant Permission (With Conditions)

#### CONDITIONS

- 1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this notice.
- 2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed extension, shall match those of the existing building.
- 3 No tree, shrub, or hedge which are shown as being retained on the approved plan (No. 605/106 B) shall be cut down, uprooted, wilfully damaged or destroyed, cut back in any way or removed other than in accordance with the approved plans and particulars, without the written approval of the Local Planning Authority. All tree works approved shall be carried out in accordance with British Standard Recommendations for Tree Work (B.S.3998: 1989).

If any tree shown to be retained in accordance with the approved plans and particulars is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes severely damaged or diseased within 3 years of the completion of the development, another tree, shrub, or hedge shall be planted at the same place, and that tree, shrub, or hedge shall be of such size, specification, and species, and should be planted at such time as may be specified in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

If within a period of five years from the date of planting any replacement tree is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree of the same species and size as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 4 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning General Permitted Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provision in any Statutory Instrument revoking or re-enacting that Order), the garage(s) hereby approved shall be retained so that it is capable of allowing the parking of cars together with any ancillary storage in connection with the residential use of the site, and shall at no time be converted into a room or used for any other purpose.

APPLICATION No:	EPF/0308/09
SITE ADDRESS:	8 Buttondene Crescent Old Nazeing Road Broxbourne Hertfordshire EN10 6RH
PARISH:	Nazeing
WARD:	Lower Nazeing
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:	Demolition of existing chalet bungalow; erection of three detached chalet bungalows, parking spaces, access drive and all ancillary works.
DECISION:	Grant Permission (With Conditions)

### CONDITIONS

- 1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this notice.
- 2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.
- 3 The screen walls, fences or such similar structures shown on the approved site layout plan shall be erected before the occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved and maintained in the agreed positions.
- 4 Prior to first occupation of the building hereby approved the proposed window openings in the first floor front gables and flank walls (with the exception of the southern flank wall of the dwelling referred to as plot 3 on the approved site layout plan) shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7metres above the floor of the room in which the window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition.
- 5 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of Part A Class A, B and E shall be undertaken without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.
- 6 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a tree protection plan, to include all the relevant details of tree protection has been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing.

The statement must include a plan showing the area to be protected and fencing in

accordance with the relevant British Standard (Trees in Relation to Construction-Recommendations; BS.5837:2005). It must also specify any other means needed to ensure that all of the trees to be retained will not be harmed during the development, including by damage to their root system, directly or indirectly.

The statement must explain how the protection will be implemented, including responsibility for site supervision, control and liaison with the LPA.

The trees must be protected in accordance with the agreed statement throughout the period of development, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior written consent to any variation.

The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a scheme of landscaping and a statement of the methods of its implementation have been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. The approved scheme shall be implemented within the first planting season following the completion of the development hereby approved.

The scheme must include details of the proposed planting including a plan, details of species, stock sizes and numbers/densities where appropriate, and include a timetable for its implementation. If any plant dies, becomes diseased or fails to thrive within a period of 5 years from the date of planting, or is removed, uprooted or destroyed, it must be replaced by another plant of the same kind and size and at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority agrees to a variation beforehand, and in writing.

The statement must include details of all the means by which successful establishment of the scheme will be ensured, including preparation of the planting area, planting methods, watering, weeding, mulching, use of stakes and ties, plant protection and aftercare. It must also include details of the supervision of the planting and liaison with the Local Planning Authority.

The landscaping must be carried out in accordance with the agreed scheme and statement, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior written consent to any variation.

8 Prior to commencement of development, including demolition or site clearance works, a phased contaminated land investigation shall be undertaken to assess the presence of contaminants at the site in accordance with an agreed protocol as below. Should any contaminants be found in unacceptable concentrations, appropriate remediation works shall be carried out and a scheme for any necessary maintenance works adopted.

Prior to carrying out a phase 1 preliminary investigation, a protocol for the investigation shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and the completed phase 1 investigation shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority upon completion for approval.

Should a phase 2 main site investigation and risk assessment be necessary, a protocol for this investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority before commencing the study and the completed phase 2 investigation with remediation proposals shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to any remediation works being carried out.

Following remediation, a completion report and any necessary maintenance

7

programme shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval prior to first occupation of the completed development.

- 9 The parking areas shown on the approved plan shall be provided prior to the first occupation of the development and shall be retained free of obstruction for the parking of residents and visitors vehicles.
- 10 No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until details of the existing and proposed finished floor levels have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Finished floor levels shall be sited no lower than 24.72mAOD. and the scheme shall be completed in accordance with the approved plans.
- 11 The development hereby approved shall not commence until further details regarding mitigation of groundwater flooding is submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and the development shall be carried out in line with the agreed flood mitigation scheme.
- 12 Prior to commencement of development, details of levels shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority showing the levels of the site prior to development and the proposed levels of all ground floor slabs of buildings, roadways and accessways and landscaped areas. The development shall be carried out in accordance with those approved details.
- 13 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations (which includes deliveries and other commercial vehicles to and from the site) which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, shall only take place between the hours of 08.00 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

APPLICATION No:	EPF/0364/09
SITE ADDRESS:	Land to rear of 114 Old Nazeing Road Nazeing Essex EN10 6QY
PARISH:	Nazeing
WARD:	Lower Nazeing
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:	Erection of a four bedroom detached house with associated parking to the rear of No. 114 Old Nazeing Road.
DECISION:	Withdrawn from Agenda

APPLICATION No:	EPF/2233/08
SITE ADDRESS:	100 High Street Roydon Harlow Essex CM19 5EE
PARISH:	Roydon
WARD:	Roydon
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:	Demolition in part of existing Chemist Shop and construction of Health Centre, comprising Chemist Shop, Dentist and Doctors surgery.
DECISION:	Grant Permission (With Conditions)

### CONDITIONS

- 1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this notice.
- 2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.
- 3 No demolition or preliminary groundworks of any kind shall take place until the applicant has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted by the applicant and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

A brief outlining the level of investigation will be issued by Essex County Council on request.

4 Prior to commencement of development, including demolition or site clearance works, a phased contaminated land investigation shall be undertaken to assess the presence of contaminants at the site in accordance with an agreed protocol as below. Should any contaminants be found in unacceptable concentrations, appropriate remediation works shall be carried out and a scheme for any necessary maintenance works adopted.

Prior to carrying out a phase 1 preliminary investigation, a protocol for the investigation shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and the completed phase 1 investigation shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority upon completion for approval.

Should a phase 2 main site investigation and risk assessment be necessary, a protocol for this investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local

Planning Authority before commencing the study and the completed phase 2 investigation with remediation proposals shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to any remediation works being carried out.

Following remediation, a completion report and any necessary maintenance programme shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval prior to first occupation of the completed development.

- 5 Prior to commencement of development additional drawings that show details of proposed new windows, doors and shopfronts, by section and elevation at scales between 1:20 and 1:1 as appropriate shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority. Work shall be carried out in accordance with such plans.
- 6 The premises shall be used solely for a chemist and combined doctor/dentist surgery and for no other purpose (including any other purpose in Class D1 of the Town & Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 2005 or shall be reverted to A1 retail use at ground floor with ancillary storage/floorspace above.
- 7 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations (which includes deliveries and other commercial vehicles to and from the site) which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, shall only take place between the hours of 08.00 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

APPLICATION No:	EPF/0383/09
SITE ADDRESS:	The Limes/White Lodge Sewardstone Road Waltham Abbey Essex E4 7SA
PARISH:	Waltham Abbey
WARD:	Waltham Abbey High Beach
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:	Reserved matters application for residential development comprising 119 dwellings (2,3,and 4 bed) and community building and shop.
DECISION:	Grant Permission (With Conditions)

### CONDITIONS

- 1 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations (which includes deliveries and other commercial vehicles to and from the site) which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
- 2 Before the development is commenced, details of the estate roads and footpaths (including layout, levels, gradients, surfacing and means of surface water drainage) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
- 3 Any trees proposed within the highway must be agreed with the Highway Authority and sited clear of all underground services and visibility sight splays and must be laid out to complement the street lighting scheme. All proposed tree planting must be supported by a commuted sum set at a realistic level, to be agreed with the Highway Authority, to cover the cost of future maintenance.
- 4 The carriageways of the proposed estate roads shall be constructed up to and including at least road base level, prior to the commencement of the erection of any dwelling intended to take access. The carriageways and footways shall be constructed up to and including base course surfacing to ensure that each dwelling prior to occupation has a properly consolidated and surfaced carriageway and footway, between the dwelling and the existing highway. Until final surfacing is completed, the footway base course shall be provided in a manner to avoid any upstands to gullies, covers, kerbs or other such obstructions within or bordering the footway. The carriageways, footways and footpaths in front of each dwelling shall be completed with final surfacing within twelve months (or three months in the case of a shared surface road or a mews) from the occupation of such dwelling.
- 5 The principal access to serve the development shall be constructed as shown on the approved plan prior to the commencement of any work upon any dwelling.

- 6 Before any works commence on site, and concurrently with the detailed design plans, an Ecological Survey of the site, or any part thereof identified by the Local Planning Authority, shall be carried out and submitted to the Local Planning Authority with an assessment of the impact of the proposed development and any appropriate measures of alleviation. Development shall be undertaken only in accordance with the agreed measures.
- 7 Prior to the commencement of development details of screen walls, fences or such similar structures shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and shall be erected before the occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved and maintained in the agreed positions.
- 8 Details of external lighting of the site shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the development. This information shall include a layout plan with beam orientation and a schedule of equipment in the design (luminaire type, mounting height, aiming angles and luminaire profiles). The lighting shall be installed, maintained and operated in accordance with the approved details unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to the variation and shall be of a focussed and directional nature to ensure that there is no light spill into the river corridor.
- 9 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning General Permitted Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provision in any Statutory Instrument revoking or re-enacting that Order), the garage and carports hereby approved shall be retained so that they are capable of allowing the parking of cars together with any ancillary storage in connection with the residential use of the site, and shall at no time be converted into a room or used for any other purpose.
- 10 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of Part 1, Class A, B, D and E shall be undertaken without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.
- 11 Prior to commencement of development details of the size, design, location and specification of the solar panels to be installed shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

APPLICATION No:	EPF/0560/09
SITE ADDRESS:	Tesco Stores Limited Sewardstone Road Waltham Abbey Essex EN9 1NP
PARISH:	Waltham Abbey
WARD:	Waltham Abbey South West
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:	Renewal of temporary planning permission and continued use of land on south east corner of the site for three more years as an additional car park (69 spaces) for Tesco store.
RECOMMENDED DECISION:	Grant Permission (With Conditions)

## CONDITIONS

- 1 This consent shall inure for a limited period expiring 18 months from the date of this Notice, at which time the development permitted by this Notice shall be discontinued.
- 2 The site shall be used solely for the parking of cars belonging to employees of Tesco's, and for no other purpose.

APPLICATION No:	EPF/0622/09
SITE ADDRESS:	The Stables Lippitts Hill Waltham Abbey Essex IG10 4AL
PARISH:	Waltham Abbey
WARD:	Waltham Abbey High Beach
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:	Erection of a two storey dwelling house with basement in the grounds of an existing house on land previously used as a riding school. Demolition of all existing outbuildings previously used by the riding school.
DECISION:	Grant Permission (with conditions)

#### CONDITIONS

- 1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this notice.
- 2 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a scheme of landscaping and a statement of the methods of its implementation have been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. The approved scheme shall be implemented within the first planting season following the completion of the development hereby approved.

The scheme must include details of the proposed planting including a plan, details of species, stock sizes and numbers/densities where appropriate, and include a timetable for its implementation. If any plant dies, becomes diseased or fails to thrive within a period of 5 years from the date of planting, or is removed, uprooted or destroyed, it must be replaced by another plant of the same kind and size and at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority agrees to a variation beforehand, and in writing.

The statement must include details of all the means by which successful establishment of the scheme will be ensured, including preparation of the planting area, planting methods, watering, weeding, mulching, use of stakes and ties, plant protection and aftercare. It must also include details of the supervision of the planting and liaison with the Local Planning Authority.

The landscaping must be carried out in accordance with the agreed scheme and statement, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior written consent to any variation.

- 3 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.
- 4 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations (which includes deliveries and other commercial vehicles to and from the site) which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, shall only take place between the hours of 08.00 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
- 5 Prior to commencement of development, including demolition or site clearance works, a phased contaminated land investigation shall be undertaken to assess the presence of contaminants at the site in accordance with an agreed protocol as below. Should any contaminants be found in unacceptable concentrations, appropriate remediation works shall be carried out and a scheme for any necessary maintenance works adopted.

Prior to carrying out a phase 1 preliminary investigation, a protocol for the investigation shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and the completed phase 1 investigation shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority upon completion for approval.

Should a phase 2 main site investigation and risk assessment be necessary, a protocol for this investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority before commencing the study and the completed phase 2 investigation with remediation proposals shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to any remediation works being carried out.

Following remediation, a completion report and any necessary maintenance programme shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval prior to first occupation of the completed development.

- 6 Wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for vehicles leaving the site during construction works shall be installed in accordance with details which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and these facilities installed prior to the commencement of any building works on site, and shall be used to clean vehicles leaving the site.
- 7 No development shall take place on site, including site clearance, tree works, demolition, storage of materials or other preparatory work, until all details relevant to the retention and protection of trees, hereafter called the Arboricultural Method Statement, have been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. Thereafter the development shall be undertaken only in accordance with the approved details, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior written consent to any variation.

The Arboricultural Method Statement shall include a tree protection plan to show the areas designated for the protection of trees, shrubs and hedges, hereafter referred to as Protection Zones. Unless otherwise agreed, the Protection Zones will be fenced, in accordance with the British Standard Trees in Relation to Construction-Recommendations (BS.5837:2005) and no access will be permitted for any development operation.

Page 17

The Arboricultural Method Statement shall include all other relevant details, such as changes of level, methods of demolition and construction, the materials, design and levels of roads, footpaths, parking areas and of foundations, walls and fences. It shall also include the control of potentially harmful operations, such as burning, the storage, handling and mixing of materials, and the movement of people or machinery across the site, where these are within 10m of any designated Protection Zone.

The fencing, or other protection which is part of the approved Statement shall not be moved or removed, temporarily or otherwise, until all works, including external works have been completed and all equipment, machinery and surplus materials removed from the site.

The Arboricultural Method Statement shall indicate the specification and timetable of any tree works, which shall be in accordance with the British Standard Recommendations for Tree Works (BS.3998: 1989).

The Arboricultural Method Statement shall include a scheme for the inspection and supervision of the tree protection measures. The scheme shall be appropriate to the scale and duration of the works and may include details of personnel induction and awareness of arboricultural matters; identification of individual responsibilities and key personnel; a statement of delegated powers; frequency, dates and times of inspections and reporting, and procedures for dealing with variations and incidents. The scheme of inspection and supervision shall be administered by a suitable person, approved by the Local Planning Authority but instructed by the applicant.

There shall be no external lighting erected at the site without the prior written consent from the Local Planning Authority.

APPLICATION No:	EPF/0765/09
SITE ADDRESS:	23A Highbridge Street Waltham Abbey Essex EN9 1BZ
PARISH:	Waltham Abbey
WARD:	Waltham Abbey South West
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:	Proposed new build for a 10 bedroom (C2 Use Class) residential care home /healthcare home. (Revised application)
DECISION:	Grant Permission (With Conditions)

### CONDITIONS

- 1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this notice.
- 2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes, windows and doors shall be submitted for approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.
- 3 The premises shall be used solely for Care home accommodation and for no other purpose (including Nursing care or any other purpose in Class C2 of the Schedule to the Town & Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987, or in any provision equivalent to that Class in any Statutory Instrument revoking or re-enacting that Order.
- 4 Prior to commencement of development, including demolition or site clearance works, a phased contaminated land investigation shall be undertaken to assess the presence of contaminants at the site in accordance with an agreed protocol as below. Should any contaminants be found in unacceptable concentrations, appropriate remediation works shall be carried out and a scheme for any necessary maintenance works adopted.

Prior to carrying out a phase 1 preliminary investigation, a protocol for the investigation shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and the completed phase 1 investigation shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority upon completion for approval.

Should a phase 2 main site investigation and risk assessment be necessary, a protocol for this investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority before commencing the study and the completed phase 2 investigation with remediation proposals shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to any remediation works being carried out.

Following remediation, a completion report and any necessary maintenance programme shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval prior to first occupation of the completed development.

- 5 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations (which includes deliveries and other commercial vehicles to and from the site) which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
- 6 A flood risk assessment (relating to drainage) shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of development. The assessment shall include calculations of increased run-off and associated volume of storm detention using Windes or other similar programme. The approved measures shall be undertaken prior to the first occupation of the building hereby approved and shall be adequately maintained in accordance with a management plan to be submitted concurrently with the assessment.
- 7 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a tree protection plan, to include all the relevant details of tree protection has been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing.

The statement must include a plan showing the area to be protected and fencing in accordance with the relevant British Standard (Trees in Relation to Construction-Recommendations; BS.5837:2005). It must also specify any other means needed to ensure that all of the trees to be retained will not be harmed during the development, including by damage to their root system, directly or indirectly.

The statement must explain how the protection will be implemented, including responsibility for site supervision, control and liaison with the LPA.

The trees must be protected in accordance with the agreed statement throughout the period of development, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior written consent to any variation.

8 The development must not commence until a scheme of landscaping and a statement of the methods of its implementation have been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. The approved scheme shall be implemented within the first planting season following the completion of the development hereby approved.

The scheme must include details of the proposed planting including a plan, details of species, stock sizes and numbers/densities where appropriate, and include a timetable for its implementation. If any plant dies, becomes diseased or fails to thrive within a period of 5 years from the date of planting, or is removed, uprooted or destroyed, it must be replaced by another plant of the same kind and size and at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority agrees to a variation beforehand, and in writing.

The statement must include details of all the means by which successful establishment of the scheme will be ensured, including preparation of the planting area, planting methods, watering, weeding, mulching, use of stakes and ties, plant protection and aftercare. It must also include details of the supervision of the planting and liaison with the Local Planning Authority. The landscaping must be carried out in accordance with the agreed scheme and statement, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior written consent to any variation.

9 The development permitted by this planning permission shall only be carried out in accordance with the approved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) (Ambiental, April 2009) and the following mitigation measures detailed within the FRA:
1. Identification and provision of safe route(s) into and out of the site to an appropriate safe haven.
2. Finished floor lovels are set to lower than 19 39m above Ordnanace Datum

2. Finished floor levels are set no lower than 19.39m above Ordnanace Datum (AOD).

- 10 The development hereby permitted shall not be commenced until such time as a scheme has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include:
  - 1. A flood emergency plan for the site
  - 2. Incorporate flood-proofing measures into the proposed development
  - 3. Agree the design of the fencing scheme.

The scheme shall be fully implemented and subsequently maintained, in accordance with the timing/phasing arrangements embodied within the scheme or within any other period as may subsequently be agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.

- 11 Prior to commencement of development details of piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative methods shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
- 12 Prior to commencement of development, details of levels shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority showing the levels of the site prior to development and the proposed levels of all ground floor slabs of buildings, roadways and accessways and landscaped areas. The development shall be carried out in accordance with those approved details.

This page is intentionally left blank